
DRAFT 
 

ST. MARGARET’S COMMITTEE 
Minutes of meeting 

March 22, 2011 
 

Members present:  Chairman Paul Fredricks, Rosemarie Zengen, Linda Keeling, Kathy Douris, 
Michael Brown (4:27 P.M.) 
 
Liaison Councilman Harry Colgan, Secretary Susan Ellis 
 
Advisor John Kuhn (4:29 P.M.) 
 
Chairman Paul Fredricks called the meeting to order at 4:04 P.M.  He announced that Kathy 
Douris has been appointed to the Committee and the Committee welcomed her. 
 
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 22, 2011 MEETING:  Rosemarie Zengen noted that under 
the Role of St. Margaret’s Committee, following Councilman Colgan’s statement that the 
construction project is not the purview of the Committee, the minutes should reflect that she 
strongly disagreed.  Rosemarie added that in the third paragraph, she said that perhaps the 
construction group should be a subcommittee of St. Margaret’s Committee.  Under the Tree 
Commission, she noted that the references should be to the Town Tree Commission, as there is a 
separate Village committee. 
 
Linda Keeling noted that Councilman Harry Colgan should be listed as liaison, and the minutes 
should be headed DRAFT.  Linda added that under the Tree Commission on page 2, the Town 
Tree Commission was working on a grant for 2011 to include 2012, for a total of 9 trees for St. 
Margaret’s property.  She also noted a correction of the meeting time for this meeting to 4 P.M. 
from 7 P.M.    
 
The minutes of the February 22 meeting were approved as amended with a motion made by Linda 
Keeling and seconded by Kathy Douris. 
 
BUDGET:  Chaiman Paul Fredricks asked Councilman Harry Colgan to discuss what funds St. 
Margaret’s Committee needs to plan on for budgeting purposes.  Harry replied that he, John Kuhn 
and Doug Strawinski will do a time line for the construction needs, and that more grants will be 
needed, as the bids for the roof work have come in too high for the grant allocation.  Paul asked 
how the Committee can be directed to raise funds for the restoration without specific information 
on what funds are needed for each restoration project. Paul stressed that the Committee has to 
determine the needs for a yearly budget, such as funds for mowing and maintenance of the 
property.  
 
John Kuhn has been using Town Recreation Committee employees to do the mowing at $30 per 
hour.  Linda Keeling asked if it would be cheaper to get someone else for the mowing.  Linda 
asked about Rick Elwin as a contractor for tree removal.  John explained that he went to 
Purchasing Agent Ted Kudzy, who had to get three bids for the work.  The bids came in at $10,000 
- $15,000, which was too high.  John used Town Recreation Committee employees to drop many 
of the trees, and only paid Rick Elwin $1,000 for critical work.  Then John had Highway 
Department employees clean up the logs.  John noted that their work is billed to the Committee’s 



budget line.  John added that when the main tree work is finished, there will be a limited need for 
maintenance of the grounds.  
 
Michael Brown asked if the Committee could get a print out of budget allocations so far.  
Chairman Paul Fredricks will get one.  Paul noted that the Committee now has a drawer in the 
Town Clerk’s office.  Information about St. Margaret’s Home will be kept in it for access by 
Committee members; this will include Committee minutes, reports and other documentation. 
 
ROOF RESTORATION:  Councilman Harry Colgan had reported that the bids for the roof work 
came in too high, so Purchasing Agent Ted Kudzy is negotiating with the low bidder.  Linda 
Keeling noted that the Committee should have the Structures Report.  Kathy Douris asked what the 
replacement roof would be; Harry replied that it would be a single membrane rubber roof.  Kathy 
asked if the contract included removal of the old roof and other repair.  Harry said that the contract 
included removal of the old roof, abatement of asbestos, replacement of soffit and fascia as 
needed, and installation of the new roof.  Kathy asked if that included the yankee gutters, and 
Harry replied that the architect included it all.  Kathy noted that she had seen no mention of the St. 
Margaret’s project in the Dodge Report, which she uses in her work.  Harry replied that Ted Kudzy 
covers all bases.  John Kuhn noted that hours and hours were spent on the documents for the grant 
applications.  Linda Keeling asked that St. Margaret’s Committee be provided a copy for the 
archives.  John also added that Architect Stephen Tilly created the bid document. 
 
Councilman Harry Colgan reiterated that there would be a separate group handling the 
construction and restoration and that there can’t be two committees working on the same thing.  He 
said that the construction group would not be a subcommittee, but a separate group, and that is the 
way he wants it.  Rosemarie Zengen said that she did not accept the way that the groups would be 
structured, that there was a lack of transparency.  Harry stressed that the mission of St. Margaret’s 
Committee is to identify fundraising projects and suitable uses for the building.  Rosemarie felt 
that both groups should be put together, and made a motion that the construction group be a 
subcommittee of St. Margaret’s Committee.  Linda Keeling seconded the motion.  Rosemarie 
Zengen, Linda Keeling and Kathy Douris voted aye; Michael Brown abstained, and Chairman Paul 
Fredricks did not vote, as there was not a tie. 
 
Chairman Paul Fredricks asked John Kuhn if the Committee could look at the construction papers 
in John’s office; John said yes.  Michael Brown asked about the roof bids being higher than 
expected.  Kathy Douris asked how much higher; Councilman Harry Colgan said that the bids are 
in the Town Clerk’s office.  Michael mentioned that he knows someone with qualifications whose 
bid might be lower and asked if the bids could be reopened.  Harry said that it would not be 
practical, adding that Paula Schoonmaker is working to see if the monies from the second 
restoration grant can be applied to the roof, which may be likely. 
 
Rosemarie Zengen asked how much grant money has been approved so far and is not yet 
encumbered.  Paul Fredricks noted that one problem with the grants is that the appraisals of the 
building and site came in low at $200,000, which impacts the sum considered as the Town’s 
match.  The Town Attorney gave one reason for the low appraisals as the deed restrictions required 
by Hannaford when the property was transferred to the Town.  If the property were commercial, it 
would be appraised at more that $400,000.  Paul will ask Town Attorney Chris Chale if Hannaford 
would consider changing the deed restrictions to allow commercial if it is restricted to offices and 
non-profits. 
 



REPORTS:  Rosemarie Zengen said that there was no written report and she wants a written 
report to the Committee of construction and maintenance activities.  Councilman Harry Colgan 
feels that a verbal report should suffice.  Chairman Paul Fredricks noted that a verbal report would 
be included in the minutes, thus having written documentation.  Rosemarie Zengen made a motion 
that John Kuhn and Paula Schoonmaker give written monthly reports.  The motion was seconded 
by Linda Keeling.  Rosemarie Zengen, Kathy Douris and Linda Keeling voted aye.  Michael 
Brown abstained and Paul Fredricks did not vote. 
 
MAINTENANCE ROUTINE:  John Kuhn described the current routine for maintenance of the 
property.  On Mondays, he goes to St. Margaret’s and picks up garbage.  If it needs mowing, he 
stops and asks Rick Schloemer of the Highway Department if he can pick up the Recreation Park 
tractor and mow.  John loads up fuel, weed whackers and other supplies.  They do clean-up and the 
Highway Department bills for the transportation of the tractor. 
 
NORTH LAWN:  John Kuhn shared a vision that he has for the north lawn to be a public space.  
He has spoken with the Old Dutch Garden Club, whose members would be willing to work on 
plantings.  John noted that there was a Special Projects Fund within the Recreation Park monies 
that was created by former Supervisor Bob Bowman for outside projects.  Most of the work done 
at St. Margaret’s has been from that fund, but the Recreation Park Commission no longer wants to 
use those funds for St. Margaret’s.  Chairman Paul Fredricks asked from this point on, what does 
the Committee need as funding for the year for maintenance. 
 
MEETING WITH RECREATION PARK COMMISSION:  Rosemarie Zengen told John 
Kuhn that St. Margaret’s Committee should meet with the Recreation Park Commission and asked 
if it could be put on the next month’s agenda.  John said yes, that the Commission meets on the 2nd 
Monday of the month, which will be April 11, 2011.  He noted that he will put it on the agenda, 
and that St. Margaret’s will have to go to the Recreation Park.  Linda Keeling and Rosemarie will 
attend.   
 
John added that the Recreation Park Commission is interested in the north lawn, whether or not it 
will be park or parking.  The State Department of Transportation will not allow parking on the 
north end.  If it can be a public space or park, the Recreation Commission will maintain it.  
Rosemarie asked what the feeling of the Committee is – to call it the North Lawn?  It can’t be 
called a park because of the grants.  Michael Brown asked of the Committee should develop a lay-
out.  John replied yes, if Michael does that kind of work.   
 
CISTERNS:  John Kuhn further mentioned that there are two cisterns on the site that must be 
addressed, and St. Margaret’s Committee will have to go to the Town Board for money.  
Rosemarie asked if the Town needs an engineer for the cisterns.  John replied that Purchasing 
Agent Ted Kudzy said that it is a safety issue and an estimate must go to the Town Board and be 
approved for safety on the site.  Rosemarie thanked John for all his reports. 
 
HANNAFORD’S TREE:  Rosemarie Zengen noted that the Town Tree Commission would like 
to replace the Hannaford’s tree and put two boulders around it until it grows. 
 
SITE INSPECTION:  Rosemarie Zengen made a motion that Kathy Douris be the liaison to the 
Construction Committee.  Linda Keeling seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved. 



Kathy Douris asked when a construction fence would be in place, as it is required by law.  John 
Kuhn said that the construction group doesn’t want one yet, as machinery will have difficulty 
accessing the site. 
 
On Wednesday, March 30, 2011, Paul Fredricks, Michael Brown, John Kuhn and Kathy Douris 
will make a site inspection at 10 A.M.  John will ask Paula Schoonmaker if she can join them and 
they can check the cisterns.  John noted that Phil Seymour is donating use of a bulldozer, and John 
will ask him if he can pull stumps. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:49 P.M. 
 
NEXT MEETING:  Tuesday, April 26, 2011, at 4 P.M. at the Town Hall 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Susan H. Ellis, Secretary 


